

SHELBY COUNTY ELECTION COMMISSION REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES

July 24, 2023

The regular meeting of the Shelby County Election Commission (SCEC) was held on July 24, 2023, at the O.C. Pleasant, Jr. Election Operations Center, 980 Nixon Drive, at 4:00pm. This meeting was recorded on Facebook live.

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: By Chairman Luttrell at 4:11pm.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT CONSTITUTING A QUORUM: Commissioners Luttrell, Kimbrow, Stamson, and Wharton

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE:

Linda Phillips, AOE
Jacob Swatley, Attorney
Monice Hagler, Attorney
Ron Boozer, Staff
Sherry Hewlett, Staff
Eleanor Brooks, Staff
Leonard Hopkins, IT
Suzanne Thompson, KQ

Carole Van Vassen Cherie Pyron Rose Ann Bradley Andrew DeShazo Sabrina Greer Michael Wright Sandra Oates Diana Barreto, KQ

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS:

Rose Ann Bradley Cherie Pyron Michael Wright

APPROVAL OF JUNE 26, 2023 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES:

MOTION STATED: Commissioner Stamson motion to approve the minutes.

SECONDED BY: Commissioner Kimbrow

ROLL CALL VOTE: Motion Carried Unanimously.

CERTIFICATION OF CANDIDATES FOR THE OCTOBER 5, 2023, CITY OF MEMPHIS MUNICIPAL ELECTION:

MOTION STATED: Commissioner Kimbrow motion to certify candidates.

SECONDED BY: Commissioner Stamson

ROLL CALL VOTE: Motion Carried Unanimously.

AOE Phillips presented information on the motion.

VOTER REGISTRATION FORM REVIEW Q2 2023:

Deferred until future meeting.

CHAIRMAN'S REMARKS:

No remarks at this time.

ATTORNEY'S REPORT:

No updates on on-going litigation at this time. Currently reviewing restoration of voting rights cases and the potential impact on the SCEC.

ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT:

AOE Phillips presented her report. Report is attached.

OLD BUSINESS:

No old business brought to the floor.

ADJOURNMENT:

Adjournment Motion by Commissioner Stamson, Seconded by Commissioner Wharton at 4:44pm.

Mark Luttrell, Jr., Chairman

Date

Vanecia Kimbrow, Secretary

Data

City of Memphis Municipal Election, October 5, 2023

Ballot Name	Address	City	Zip	Candidate Party	Election	Office	Issue Date	Filed Date	Status
Mayor									
Carnita Atwater	1098 Firestone Ave.	Memphis	38107	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor	7/17/2023	7/20/2023	Approved
Jennings Bernard	3388 Emerald Street	Memphis	38115	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor	5/30/2023	7/11/2023	Approved
Floyd Bonner	1004 Murray Hill Lane	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor	6/1/2023	6/15/2023	Approved
Joe Brown	3564 Macon Road	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor	6/2/2023	7/7/2023	Approved
Kendra C. Calico	1356 Faxon	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor	7/7/2023	7/19/2023	Approved
Karen Camper	3545 Hazelhedge	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor		7/14/2023	Approved
J.W. Gibson	3943 N. Lakewood Drive	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor	5/22/2023	6/16/2023	Approved
Reggie Hall	3870 Graceland Dr.	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor		7/19/2023	Approved
James Harvey	3642 Woodglade Lane	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor		7/10/2023	Approved
Willie Herenton	885 Barton Street	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor	5/23/2023	6/23/2023	Approved
Michelle McKissack	171 Harbor Village Drive	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor		7/17/2023	Approved
Brandon A. Price	6571 Stockport Cove	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor	5/22/2023		Approved
Justina Ragland	1567 Castalia Street	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor	5/23/2023	6/28/2023	Approved
Tekeva "Keva" Shaw	966 Looney Ave.	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor		7/20/2023	Approved
Van Turner	2335 Forest Ave	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor	6/5/2023	7/18/2023	Approved
Derek Winn	568 Diana Street	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor	5/31/2023	6/5/2023	Approved
Paul A. Young	5824 Garden River Cove	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	Mayor	5/26/2023	7/6/2023	Approved
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							5,-5,-5-5	,	
City Council									
Kymberly Kelley	2463 Boxford Ln.	Cordova	38016	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 1	7/3/2023	7/20/2023	Approved
Rhonda Logan	4971 Ridge Park Drive	Memphis	38016	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 1	6/6/2023	7/13/2023	Approved
Ç	G	•			. , ,	•			
Keith L. Burks	6970 Garrick Drive	Memphis	38119	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 2	5/22/2023	7/14/2023	Approved
Will Frazier	7924 Atwater Lane Apt 203	Memphis	38119	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 2	5/23/2023	7/17/2023	Approved
Jerri Green	2277 Massey Rd.	Memphis	38119	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 2	6/30/2023	7/12/2023	Approved
Scott McCormick	1356 Rainsong Cv.	Cordova	38016	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 2	6/14/2023	7/19/2023	Approved
Rodanial Ray Ransom	878 Waif Woods Lane	Memphis	38018	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 2	5/22/2023	7/14/2023	Approved
Marvin White	6918 Tangleberry Cove	Memphis	38119	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 2	5/22/2023	7/3/2023	Approved
Distance Disease	004 Balanca Basad	N 4 1: 1 -	00440	No. Dodino.	Martin at Otto (Marcoltic	O'th Orange II Birdela	F/00/0000	0/00/0000	A
Ricky Dixon	981 Palmer Road	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 3	5/22/2023	6/30/2023	Approved
James Kirkwood	3574 Hermitage Drive	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 3	5/22/2023	6/6/2023	Approved
Kawanias "Kaye" McNeary	4231 Shadowfall Drive	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 3	5/22/2023	5/31/2023	Approved
Towanna C. Murphy	3321 Burgess Drive	Memphis	38118	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 3	5/22/2023	6/21/2023	Approved
Pearl Eva Walker	5378 Loch Lomond Rd	Memphis	38116	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 3	5/22/2023	6/20/2023	Approved
Teri Dockery	1527 Westlawn Dr.	Memphis	38114	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 4	6/21/2023	6/30/2023	Approved
Jana Swearengen-Washingto		Memphis			Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 4	5/24/2023	5/30/2023	Approved
tana emeanangen washingto		Moniphilo	55114	. 1011 1 41110411		on, Journal Planter	3, Z 7, Z 0 Z 0	5,55,2520	pp.0000
Luke Hatler	1702 Galloway Avenue	Memphis	38112	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 5	5/31/2023	7/6/2023	Approved
Meggan Wurzburg Kiel	1741 Autumn Avenue	Memphis	38112	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 5	5/22/2023	5/23/2023	Approved
Philip Spinosa	198 Saint Andrews Fairway	Memphis	38111	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 5	5/25/2023	7/14/2023	Approved
K '' 5 A '' ''	0.4.5. D:		00:55			01. 0 11. 51. 11. 5	7/	7/40/2225	
Keith D Austin II	34 E. Biscayne	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 6	7/17/2023	7/19/2023	Approved
Edmund H. Ford Sr	917 Summer Shade Lane	Memphis	38116	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 6	5/22/2023	7/18/2023	Approved

Larry Hunter	1238 Overton Park Ave	Memphis	38104	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 6	5/22/2023	5/31/2023	Approved
Edward Douglas	3854 Sybil St	Memphis	38127	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 7	5/22/2023	5/30/2023	Approved
Michalyn Easter-Thomas	1963 Edward Avenue	Memphis	38107	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 7	5/31/2023	7/11/2023	Approved
Jimmy Hassan	869 N. Willett St.	Memphis	38107	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 7	7/7/2023	7/19/2023	Approved
Jarrett "JP" Parks	1435 N. Merton St.	Memphis .	38108	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 7	7/5/2023	7/11/2023	Approved
Dee Reed	3574 Ladue Dr.	Memphis	38127	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 7	6/23/2023	6/28/2023	Approved
Austin Rowe	910 Hawthorne St	Memphis	38107	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 7	6/6/2023	7/17/2023	Approved
Larry Springfield	1049 LaGrange Ave.	Memphis	38107	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - District 7	7/12/2023	7/17/2023	Approved
JB Smiley Jr.	1920 Kendale Ave	Memphis	38114	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - Super District 8 - Position 1	6/2/2023	6/12/2023	Approved
Marion LaTroy A - Williams Jr	3693 Hermitage Dr.	Memphis	38116	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - Super District 8 - Position 2	7/18/2023	7/20/2023	Approved
Davin D. Clemons	603 Denmark Drive Apt. 201	Memphis	38103	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - Super District 8 - Position 2	5/22/2023	7/14/2023	Approved
Janika White	435 S. Front St., #403	Memphis	38103	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - Super District 8 - Position 2	7/7/2023	7/18/2023	Approved
Berlin F. Boyd	133 Harbor Town Blvd	Memphis	38103	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - Super District 8 - Position 3	6/5/2023	7/17/2023	Approved
Lucille Catron	979 Grand St.	Memphis	38114	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - Super District 8 - Position 3	7/14/2023	7/18/2023	Approved
Yolanda Cooper-Sutton	4072 Shirley Drive	Memphis	38109	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - Super District 8 - Position 3	5/23/2023	6/7/2023	Approved
Brian Harris	109 N. Main Apt 505	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - Super District 8 - Position 3	5/23/2023	7/13/2023	Approved
Damon Curry Morris	1529 Dunmoor Road	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - Super District 8 - Position 3	5/31/2023	7/14/2023	Approved
Jerred Price	648 Poplar Avenue	Memphis		Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - Super District 8 - Position 3	6/6/2023	7/19/2023	Approved
Paul Randolph, Jr.	530 W. Raines Road	Memphis	38109	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - Super District 8 - Position 3	5/24/2023	7/19/2023	Approved
Chase Carlisle	4303 Gwynne Road	Memphis		Non-Partisan	. , ,	City Council - Super District 9 - Position 1	5/24/2023	7/7/2023	Approved
Benji Smith	3320 Highland Park Pl.	Memphis	38111	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - Super District 9 - Position 1	6/29/2023	7/5/2023	Approved
Ford Canale	418 Greenfield Rd	Memphis	38117	Non-Partisan		City Council - Super District 9 - Position 2	5/22/2023	6/23/2023	Approved
Brandon D. Washington	2000 N. Parkway	Memphis	38112	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - Super District 9 - Position 2	7/6/2023	7/17/2023	Approved
Jeff Warren	225 Buena Vista Place	Memphis	38112	Non-Partisan	Municipal-City of Memphis	City Council - Super District 9 - Position 3	5/22/2023	6/30/2023	Approved



Shelby County Election Commission

Administrator of Elections Monthly Report – July 2023

- **Delinquent Campaign Finance City of Memphis** The City of Memphis 2nd Quarter Report for the period ending 6/30/2023 was due on July 10th. The next report Is due September 28, 2023 and covers the period of July 1, 2023 through September 25, 2023. As of this morning, the following have not filed reports:
 - o Jerred Price, Memphis City Council District 8, Position 3
 - o Nicholas Scott, Memphis City Council, District 5
 - o Pearl Walker, Memphis City Council, District 3
- Delinquent Campaign Finance Previous Elections. A list is attached to this report.
 A number of current elected officials are on this list. If there is a date in the "Certified Letter Returned" column, either the candidate did not pick up the certified letter or it was returned as undeliverable. If you have a better address for any of these candidates, please let us know.
- **Deputy Registrar** We have an upcoming deputy registrar class on August 8, 2023 at 5:30pm here at the Operations Center. We currently have 225 deputy registrars. We spoke to CivicTN about our deputy registrar program. Deputy registrars supported events at the Chism Picnic, The Laundromat, a school carnival, and Pride Fest.
- Outreach I spoke at a Lunch and Learn for the Memphis City Council staff. Sherry spoke to the Benjamin Hook Library Youth Diversity Camp. We attended two Naturalization Ceremonies at the Library on July 20th. Upcoming I am speaking at the Germantown Rotary Club. We are doing a voter registration event at the Levi Library on July 28th. August 10th will be another naturalization ceremony and we are supporting University of Memphis Campus Voter Registration on August 30th. We will have a new equipment demo at the MSCS Back to School Parade on August 26th.
- District 86 Special General Early voting continues until July 29, 2023. Turnout has not been robust.
- Memphis Municipal Election The deadline to withdraw is NOON, Thursday, July 27, 2023. The withdrawal notice may be emailed, faxed, or hand delivered. (Faxed or emailed notices must be followed up with hard copies.) Anyone who has not withdrawn by the deadline will be on the ballot.

- Berclair COC Early Voting Location This building has been sold and the new owners are not interested in being an Early Voting Location. We are searching for a new site inside the I-240 loop in that same general area. If you have any ideas, please let us know.
- Handicapped Accessibility Disability Rights TN surveyed 44 polling places for the November, 2022 election. I am pleased to report that 100% of the surveyed polling places were set up correctly for voters with disabilities and that our pollworkers have a 100% competency rating for assisting voters with disabilities. We do have some sites that do not provide van accessible parking. Those sites are being re-surveyed to see if there are temporary measures that can be implemented for Election Day. If they are public buildings, then we will work with management to see if the issues can be fixed permanently.

Days to Upcoming Events

		Days
Event	Date	Until
Last Day of Early Voting - District 86 Special General	7/29/2023	5
Election Day - District 86 Special General	8/3/2023	10
First Day of Early Voting - Memphis	9/15/2023	53
Last Day of Early Voting - Memphis	9/30/2023	68
Memphis Municipal Election	10/5/2023	73
Memphis Municipal Election Run-Off (If required.)	11/16/2023	115
Presidential Preference Primary	3/5/2024	225